
GERMAN VILLAGE SOCIETY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 

August 8, 2016 
 
Present: John Barr, Dennis Brandon, Kelly Clark, Darci Congrove, Bill Curlis, Heidi Drake, 

Greg Gamier, Brittany Gibson, Joe Kurzer, Jeanne Likins, Marie Logothetis, Josh 
Miller, and Susan Sutherland. 

 
Staff and Guests: Gary Seman, and Shiloh Todorov. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by President Jeanne Likins.   
 
Public Participation 
 



President Likins reported that Ms. Congrove, at the direction of the Executive Committee, had 
researched establishing a German Village Advisory Board to provide the Board with additional resources 
to execute the “robust strategic plan” adopted last year.  Ms. Congrove presented her report and 
answered questions from the Board.  Following discussion, the Board gave its approval to further 
investigation into such an advisory group. 
 
President Likins also reported that several Board members had continuing conflicts with Monday 
evening Board meetings and asked if there was any interest in changing the day of the week that the 
Board met.  Following a short discussion, a motion was offered. 
 
 MOTION: That the German Village Society Board of Trustees change its 
   regular monthly meetings to the second Tuesday of every 
   month, beginning with the meeting on Tuesday,  
   October 11, 2016.  [Likins, Congrove]  
 
 Motion approved. 
 
Vice President Heidi Drake reported that she was continuing to work on the Drop Box file as the 
repository of the motions and polic





if the amendments were to be voted upon at the Annual Meeting to be held on November 6, 2016, the 
August meeting of the Board of Trustees was the last date that such a motion was timely. 
 
Mr. Curlis went on to ask the Board if they would consider increasing the number of appointed 
members of the Board by two (3 appointed, 12 elected, 15 total Board members) to provide additional 
professional skills, talent, and experience to the Board and to help with the many tasks, committee 
assignments, and board commitments that Board members must serve.  In addition, as the Board takes 
on new fundraising assignments, additional board members would expand the contacts and network 



GERMAN VILLAGE SOCIETY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AGENDA 
 

August 8, 2016 
 
 
Call to Order        Jeanne Likins 
 
Public Participation 
 
 Haus und Garten Report     Brittany Gibson 
         Shiloh Todorov 
 Brick Sidewalk Repair Incentive Program    Sarah Marsom 
 
Report of the Officers 
 
 Report of the President      Jeanne Likins 
  German Village Society Advisors 
  Board of Trustees Meeting Day 
 
 Report of the Vice-President     Heidi Drake 
  



   written report  
 
  Fund for Historic Preservation    Darci Congrove 
   written report 
  
 Advocacy       Kelly Clark 
  Parking       Tim Bibler 
   no report 
   

Civic Relations      Nelson Genshaft 
   written report 
   

Parks and Public Spaces     Sara McNealey 
   no report     Carol Mullinax    

Friends of Schiller    Katharine Moore 
   no report 
   
 Community Quality of Life     Greg Gamier/Josh Miller 
  GV Business Community    Jeff Lowe 
   written report 
  Long Range Planning     Josh Miller 
   written report 
  Art Committee      Carole Genshaft 
   no report 
    
 Development       Dennis Brandon 
   no report 
    Next Meeting: August 22, 2016 
    
  Events  
   Haus und Garten    Brittany Gibson 
    oral report     
   Monster Bash     Brittany Gibson 
    written report 
    Next Meeting:  August, 2016 
   Tea 43206     Darci Congrove 
    written report 
    Event date:  August 20, 2016 

  Art Crawl     Greg Gamier 
   written report 
   Event Date: July, 2017 
  Village Lights     Greg Gamier 
   Next Meeting:  August 25, 2016 
 Membership      Susan Sutherland 
  no report 
 
 Corporate Outreach     Joe Kurzer 
  no report 



 
 
Finance        John Barr 
 Finance Committee     John Barr 
  written report 
  Next meeting:  September, 2016 
      Investment Sub-Committee    John Barr 
  written report 
  Next meeting:  September, 2016 

     Budget Sub-Committee    John Barr 
  Next meeting:  September, 2016  Shiloh Todorov 
 
Governance       Heidi Drake 
 Organizational Development    Heidi Drake 
  2016 BOT Election Balloting begins 
    August 9, 2016 
  Amendments to the Constitution 
 
 MOTION: Pursuant to Article VII, Section 1 of the Constitution 
   the attached amendments to the Constitution shall be 
   presented to the membership of the German Village 
   



German Village’s Sidewalk Plan – 

 

Sidewalk Repair Incentives-  

Prioritizations of sidewalk repairs are based on conditions assessment; documentation will be verified 
prior to distribution of funds or scheduling of workshop.*   All projects need to be completed by a 
contractor familiar with the COA process, Columbus sidewalk permits, GV guidelines and recommended 
bricks.  Every applicant will need to submit application agreeing to these terms.   

Subsidized: 

Brick to Brick 

 Members- Eligible members fall in the medium and urgent score categories.  $500; funding 
amount based on national research.  

 Nonmembers- Same inclusion criteria as above, but less financial support.  $100 

Concrete to Brick: 

 Members- Concrete in medium and urgent condition receives higher priority, but concrete 
receives high priority due to the preservation benefits of converting back to brick.  $700.  Due to the 
higher cost switching from concrete to brick, it is necessary to add additional incentive for sidewalk 
repairs.  

 Nonmembers- Same inclusion criteria as above, but less financial support. $300 

Concrete to Concrete: 

 The German Village Society will not provide funding for these kinds of projects.  

Workshops: 

 Members will receive priority, and will be selected based on   

 



physical newsletter, mentions in neighbors4neighbors, and a new 



GERMAN VILLAGE SOCIETY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 

July 11, 2016 
 
Present: John Barr, Dennis Brandon, Darci Congrove, Bill Curlis, Heidi Drake, Greg 

Gamier, Brittany Gibson, Joe Kurzer, Jeanne Likins, Marie Logothetis, and Susan 
Sutherland. 

 
Staff and Guests: Linda Gorsuch, Susan Salt, Terri Dickey, Betty Garrett, Jim Nichols, Alberta 

Stevens, Gary Seman, and Shiloh Todorov. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by President Jeanne Likins.   
 
Public Participation 
 
President Likins welcomed and thanked the 2016 Haus und Garten co, were also recognized for 

putting together an event for 725 partygoers that was the largest number of Pre-Tour dinner and 
cocktail guests, ever.    Brittany Gibson, Board liaison (and Haus und Garten program editor) toasted the 
chairs with champagne and the Board congratulated everyone with applause. 
 
Ms. Todorov reported that Ms. Gorsuch and Ms. Salt had agreed to chair the 2017 Haus und Garten Tour 
again and that Tracie and Brad Stamm had accepted the request to chair the 2017 Pre-Tour Party. 
 
Ms. Todorov further noted that final receipts and bills for the 2016 Haus und Garten Tour had not been 
tallied, but that a preliminary review indicated that the event had met expectations and that she would 
“reforecast” for the Board at the August meeting. 
 
Reports of the President and Officers 
 
Ms. Likins reported that pursuant to the By-Laws she had appointed the Election Committee to oversee 
the 2016 election of officers:  Madeline Hicks, Sue Riley, and Phyllis Driscoll. 
 
President Likins also reported that the ODC committee was working on Constitutional and By-Law 
changes which would bring our operating documents into alignment with the strategic plan.  Prior to the 
next Board meeting, Ms. Likins will meet with all committee chairs and strategic plan pillars to review 
proposed By-Law changes and to elicit their comments. 
 
Ms. Likins further asked that Board members take a more active part in the 2017 Haus und Garten 
Volunteer Party and Sunday wrap-up.   
 
Secretary Bill Curlis presented the Minutes of the meeting of June 13, 2016. 
 



MOTION: Approve the Minutes of the meetings of June 13, 2016.  [



encouraged anyone wishing to donate items to the silent auction to do so as early as possible, so that 
she and her committee did not have to scramble at the last minute. 
 
Dennis Brandon reported that Mark Weiss was preparing training materials for Board members for the 
new Society giving and sponsorship solicitation programs. 
 
Greg Gamier gave an up-date on the Art Crawl, Saturday, July 16, 2016.  He noted that volunteers were 
still needed, but that all other plans were in place and that the weather was predicted to be perfect for 
the event. 
 
Staff Reports 
 
The staff had provided written reports and Ms. Likins asked if there were any questions regarding those 
reports. 
 
The business of the July 11, 2016, meeting of the German Village Society Board of Trustees having been 
concluded, the meeting was adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 
 
     Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
     William L. Curlis, Secretary  
Attest: 
 
 
 
Jeanne Likins, President 
 
 



German Village Society 
Treasurer’s Report 

August 8, 2016 Board Meeting 
 

Highlights from the July 2016 Financial Statements 

 

Cash balances as of July 31, 2016  

Operations:  The checking account balance is $119,949.  The account balance is $88,373. 

Designated accounts:  The various designated fund accounts total $242,026.  Major balances in these 



Page 1 of 2

Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         Bank Accounts - Operations

            Operations Chase Checking - 6039 119,948.68  

            Operations Chase Contingency - 4693 88,373.48  

         Total Bank Accounts - Operations $                        208,322.16  



Page 2 of 2

Total

German Village Society
Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2016

   Fixed Assets

      Building 588 South Third Street

         Cost 759,990.66  

         Depreciation -609,748.35  

         Land 40,000.00  

      Total Building 588 South Third Street $                        190,242.31  

      Leasehold Improvements 102,386.64  

         Depreciation



Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual

Income

   Admission/Event Income

427.118.576 436.271 1432.272 13.423 re
W n
BT
/TT1 
BT.8(e6C 
BT
/TT1 5C 
Q
 440.542t)5
 440.542g
EMC 
/S96  



Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Income

   Admission/Event Income 354.44  0.00  200.00  200.00  0.00  28,907.50  4,000.00  28,201.00  37,200.00  53,153.00  62,000.00  -750.00  0.00  0.00  4,000.00  8,600.00  0.00  0.00  110,065.94  116,000.00  

4,003.00  53,11.90  53,10.50  53,15.33  4,-00  0.00  0.00  0.00  4,000.50  0.00  



Actual Budget
over 

Budget
% of 

Budget Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget July Notes:

Income

   Admission/Event Income -750.00  0.00  -750.00  110,065.94  103,400.00  6,665.94  106.45% h&g refunds

   Advertising Income 5,334.42  0.00  5,334.42  60,336.14  49,500.00  10,836.14  121.89%

   Contributions 2,120.96  2,000.00  120.96  106.05% 9,032.86  8,000.00  1,032.86  112.91%

   In-Kind Donations 59,119.73  0.00  59,119.73  101,464.64  94,000.00  7,464.64  107.94%

   Interest Income 0.00  29.33  0.00  29.33  

   Membership Dues - GVS 2,655.00  2,000.00  655.00  132.75% 84,706.48  68,000.00  16,706.48  124.57%

   Membership Dues -GVBC 300.00  150.00  150.00  200.00% 10,950.00  8,625.00  2,325.00  126.96%

   Merchandise Income -653.60  100.00  -753.60  -653.60% -171.50  250.00  -421.50  -68.60% paid john clark for books

   Miscellaneous Income 131.00  0.00  131.00  2,203.04  800.00  1,403.04  275.38%

   Rental Income 455.00  500.00  -45.00  91.00% 6,577.50  6,500.00  77.50  101.19%

   Sponsorship 4,500.00  0.00  4,500.00  58,978.00  55,500.00  3,478.00  106.27%

   Tour Income 1,927.00  700.00  1,227.00  275.29% 5,921.00  11,200.00  -5,279.00  52.87%

Total Income $      75,139.51  $        5,450.00  $  69,689.51  1378.71% $    450,093.43  $    405,775.00  $      44,318.43  110.92%

Gross Profit $      75,139.51  $        5,450.00  $  69,689.51  1378.71% $    450,093.43  $    405,775.00  $      44,318.43  110.92%

Expenses

   Accounting Expense 1,200.00  -1,200.00  0.00% 7,200.00  8,400.00  -1,200.00  85.71%

   Advertising 141.80  0.00  141.80  2,246.80  380.00  1,866.80  591.26%

   Audit Fees 1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00  6,000.00  5,300.00  700.00  113.21%

   Bank/Credit Card Fees 148.93  992.00  -843.07  15.01% 5,534.60  6,922.00  -1,387.40  79.96%

   Computer Related Costs 1,125.13  1,100.00  25.13  102.28% 25,879.20  24,500.00  1,379.20  105.63%

   Consulting Fees 0.00  0.00  10,465.00  13,500.00  -3,035.00  77.52%

   Dues & Memberships 1,185.00  700.00  485.00  169.29% 1,300.00  2,050.00  -750.00  63.41%

   Equipment Rental 1,038.46  1,000.00  38.46  103.85% 4,580.05  8,000.00  -3,419.95  57.25%

   Food/Beverages -47.08  0.00  -47.08  1,277.60  4,150.00  -2,872.40  30.79% refunded supplies

   Gifts & Awards 309.00  0.79%



Fund��for��Historic��Preservation/TEA��43206��������������������������������������������������������
July��2016��Board��Report��
��
TEA��43206��
��
Tickets��for��TEA��43206��are��on��sale��now��on��the��GVS��website!����The��event��is��scheduled��for��August��20,��2016��at��4pm,��
rain��or��shine.����The��garden��party��event��will��feature��food,��drinks,��music,��a��live��auction,��a��wine��raffle,��and��a��best��hat��
contest.������
��
Ticket��prices��will��remain��the��same��as��last��year,��$75��in��advance,��or��$100��at��the��gate.����Sponsorship��packages��for��
individuals��or��businesses��are��available��at��$250,��$500,��$750��and��more.����Tickets��with��each��package,��respectively,��are��
2,��4,��6��and��more.����Sponsors��will��receive��recognition��on��the��GVS��website,��all��promotional��



Civic Relations           Nelson Genshaft, Chair 
 



  

�x       The committee noted that they run a school and have weddings and other events 
at the church, sometimes planned years in advance.  During construction, they are 
concerned about access and the effect on the building, for example, wedding 
pictures on the steps of the church.  They would like as much advanced notice of 
the construction schedule as possible.  I said we were too far away to give any 
kind of notice, but my understanding is that the construction will be done in 
phases so that businesses and residents can plan and to avoid as much 
inconvenience as possible.   

  

In summary, it was a good meeting, lasting about 45 minutes, and I told the committee that we 
would continue to keep them informed of developments and include them in the planning 
process as best we could.   

 



  GVBC 

GVBC AUGUST REPORT  
 

Another Art Crawl is in the books.  We don’t have exact numbers yet but it 
is safe to say that we netted close to $20,000.  We made some significant 
improvements to the event this year with better signage, drink tokens 
instead of paper tickets and a professional bartending staff.  We did get 
some feedback from past volunteers that were unhappy about not being 
able to bartend as in past years.  Our reasons behind this change were 
issues such as liability.  All the bartenders we used had been through state 
approved “responsible alcohol training” programs.   They also volunteered 
their time for this so we saw it as a win/win situation that we’re hoping to 
continue in the future. 

We know we have a lot to work on….FOOD…we hear you, we keep running 
out!  We increase the amount the restaurants bring each year and then we 
get perfect weather and that brings with it record attendance!  Trust me, 
we are already looking at ways to revamp the entire event before next July 
and bring you a new and improved Art Crawl.   

Now it is time to start working on Village Lights!  Anyone happen to have a 
spare horse and carriage they can lend us?!?! 

 

Jeff Lowe/Greg Gamier 

GVCB Chairs 



  

1 

Long Range Planning Committee  

Ju ly 2016 Report  

The LRPC was on hiatus in July, looking forward to an action-packed August!  

�x One upcoming event to note, the OSU tailgate tradition resumes on Saturday, Sept. 17th 
for the OSU v Oklahoma game. Stay tuned for more details as plans firm up.  



Monster Bash
big night isn’t far off – Saturday, Oct. 15. 



 

Discussion            

Topic s :    2

n d

 Quarter Investment Performance  

                             Discussion of Huntington Garden Fund  

 

Bob Morrison from Huntington began by renewing Huntington’s commitment to serving t he 

n e e d s  o f  t h e  G V S  a n d  i n t r o d u c e d  B r i a n  D i l l o n  ,   t h e  n e w  c l i e n t  s e r v i c e  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  f o r  t h e  

society.  B r i a n  s u m m a r i z e d  t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  r e s u l t s  f o r  t h e  2

nd

 Quarter which indicated that 

t h e  m a r k e t  r e c o v e r e d  m o s t  o f  w h a t  h a d  b e e n  l o s t  i n  p r e v i o u s  q u a r t e r s .  Brian also indicated 

t h a t  H u n t i n g t o n  f e l t  t h a t  t h e r e  s h o u l d  b e  p o s i t i v e  r e s u l t s  t h r o u g h  t h e  r e s t  o f  t h e  y e a r   i f  

m a r k e t  c o n d i t i o n s  s t a y  r e l a t i v e l y  t h e  s a m e .   I t  w a s  n o t e d  t h a t  s i n c e  t h e  S o c i e t y  h a s  b e e n  i n  

t h e  c u r r e n t  i n v e s t m e n t  p r o g r a m ,  t h a t  t h e  c u m u l a t i v e  r e t u r n  o v e r  t h e  a p p r o x i m a t e  t h r e e  

y e a r  t e r m  i n  e q u i t i e s  h a s  b e e n  9 %  w h i c h  i s  c o n s i d e r e d  t o  b e  a  r e s p e c t a b l e  r e t u r n .  

 

A f t e r  t h e  H u n t i n g t o n  p r e s e n t a t i o n  t h e  c o m m i t t e e  d i s c u s s e d  t h e  s t a t u s  o f  t h e  H u n t i n g t o n  

Garden Fund and whether a different investment strategy should be considered in order to 

b e t t e r  m e e t  t h e  o b j e c t i v e s  o f  t h e  f u n d  w h i c h  i s  t o  p r o v i d e  a n n u a l  i n c o m e  f o r  t h e  

maintenance of the Garden while still preserving the principle.  It was agreed that John Barr 

would research whether there were any internal restrictions prohibiting changing the 

investment such as by - laws etc and what approvals would be required and would obtain 

some investment options from Huntington as a starting point for further discussion with 

c o m m i t t e e  m e m b e r s .  

 

The next finance m e e t i n g  o n  i n v e s t m e n t s  w i l l  b e  O c t o b e r  2 6 ,  a t  5 : 3 0 .  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

[T
yp

e 
th

e 
co

m
pa

ny
 N

am
e] 





GERMAN VILLAGE SOCIETY 
 

P R O P O S E D 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 
 
 
 
  
ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP 
 
Section 2 
 
Every person applying for membership and every member shall be of good character and of good 
standing in the community.  Unless information is submitted to the contrary, every application shall be 
approved by the Board of Trustees. 
 
ARTICLE IV - BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
Section 1 
 
Except as provided in Article IV, Section 8, the Board of Trustees shall consist of twelve (12) 
ELECTED voting members, and one (1) APPOINTED, non-voting member.  Among the twelve (12) 



Executive Director Report – August 2016 

A record-setting Haus und Garten Tour net income is cause for applause for the 500 people across the 
neighborhood whom made it happen on June 25-26! And because this is the third such record-setting 
event, the Society can begin to invest in the No. 1 strategic plan project: improving sidewalks! Read on… 

Preservation Education 

Historic Preservation Advocate Sarah Marv93(w) will join us Monday to present her near-complete plans 



The city says the “porkchop” work to correct the ADA violations at the Schiller Park Rec Center entrance 
will happen Aug. 8-26. I’m asking for more details about access and parking during the work. 

Enhance visitor experience 

Sarah Marsom will pilot “standing tours” in October during Quarter Horse Congress. Sarah has had the 
idea to create and test several options for taking a tour on a set day/time since she joined us 2.5 years 
ago, but this fall will be the first opportunity to set four dates and try a few existing tour themes to see 
how it works. 

Maximize relationship with police  

A new Police Luncheon meeting schedule was recently adopted and introduced at the July 13 meeting. 
Meetings will now be held on a QUARTERLY basis and will typically be held on the FIRST WEDNESDAY of 
the calendar quarter. Two meetings per year being will be held in the evening.  

While the schedule has changed, the idea of providing an opportunity for the neighborhood and officers 
to share a dialogue, while honoring the law enforcement professionals who serve us, is the same. 





August Board Report �t Mark Weiss, Manager Donor Development & Marketing 

Donor Development 

Attending an Association of Fundraising Professionals seminar on August 3-4, the process of Development Plan 
implementation is under way.  The Development Committee is set to meet on August 22 and McKenzie and I plan 
to be prepared with about 70% of this process for vetting through the committee.   

Part of this process has been ongoing since mid-July.  McKenzie and I have vetted major donor prospects through 
staff and board members in order to identify which donors may be willing to discuss a long-term commitment to 
giving to GVS at a higher level.  This process truly began after SLATE on May 24. 

We have been careful in this process to identify areas where we won�[t cannibalize our events, but shifting from a 
transactional give (i.e. ticket purchase) to a relational donation (membership levels that may include the benefit of 
event tickets).   

Aside from the research aspect to building donor profiles, I�[ve been busy matching donors to appropriate board 
members.  Discovering donor interests and matching them with a board member who has intimate knowledge of 
our organization with respect to those interests is key in developing that relationship.  Many donors have already 
given feedback that they are ready to commit, some donors want to begin a dialogue in order to give later, and 
even more prospective donors want further education about our mission. 

This major donor capital campaign should be approached with patience.  We�[ve been planning for an 18-month 
campaign and it�[s extremely vital to the success of this campaign that we have a solid foundation with clear goals, 
scope, direction and process. 

Art Crawl 

At the end of August, the organizers of Art Crawl have invited some event-planning minds to the table to reimagine 
Art Crawl.  Over the past 3 years we have been reacting to feedback in order to improve Art Crawl.  And while 
we�[ve taken action to try to meet new expectations each year, we seem to be falling into a pattern of � ĵust missing 
the mark.�_ There�[s a great challenge here: How do we continue to improve upon a record-breaking fundraiser in 
the face of increasing expectations all while being restricted to four blocks along Macon Alley? 

We�[re looking to reset the table with this event to a degree.  Please standby for further updates into 2017 as we 
complete this meeting and a scheduled post-mortem for mid-August. 

Website �t Board of Trustee Electronic Voting/ �[My Account�[ Registration 

August 9-30 is our open window for BoT election ballots, both electronically and mailed ballots.  We are excited to 
extend the opportunity to e-vote to our members, knowing that not all members will have or want the ability to do 
so.  Physical ballots may never be fully eliminated as an option but in an effort to encourage members to fully 
utilize the investment put into the new website, voting is JUST THE FIRST feature of �ZMy Account.�[ 

�ZMy Account�[ is a dashboard page that allows donors to create their own profile online at GermanVillage.com.  
Once registered, a donor will have the ability to manage tickets, update contact information, vote and receive 
exclusive updates before the general public. 




	000 gvsminutes08-08-16
	100 GVSagenda2
	101 Sidewalk Repair Incentive Program Skeleton
	103 gvsminutes07-11-16
	104 GVS August board meeting Treasurer Report
	105 GVS Balance Sheet July 2016
	Balance Sheet

	106 GVS Designated By Class- July 2016.xlsx
	2016 Designated Budget Variance

	107 GVS Operations Budget vs Actual - July 2016
	2016 GVS Budget Variance By Mon

	108 GVS Previous Month Budget vs Actual- July 2016
	2016 GVS Operations Previous Mo

	200 Fund for HP and TEA 43206 report August 2016
	201 Civic Relations
	202 GVBC BOT Report 8-2016
	203 GVLRPC_July2016_Report
	204 MB report 8.8.16
	205 Finance Committee Meeting  7-20
	206 gvsODCminutes07-12-16
	207 gvsConstitutionAmendment2016
	300 August 2016 Executive Director Report
	301 August 2016 Historic Preservation Advocate Board Report
	302 August Board Mananger Donor Development and Marketing Report

